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MAG LL, G rcuit Judge.

Shirley Mora appeal s her conviction on four counts of mail fraud in
violation of 18 U.S.C. 88 1341 and 1342, arguing that the district court!?
abused its discretion in allow ng the governnent to present "other crines"

evidence. W affirm

In Decenber 1988, Mora's father passed away, |eaving Mora an estate
whi ch i ncluded a house on Red Bud Drive in Pacific, Mssouri. The house,
val ued at $159, 000, was insured against fire loss by the Safeco |nsurance
Conpany of America (Safeco). On
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April 2, 1993, the house was destroyed by fire.

Mora submitted clains to Safeco for the loss of the house and its
contents in the ambunt of $211, 720.75.2 Safeco denied her clains, and on
January 4, 1994, she brought an unsuccessful civil suit against Safeco to
recover her | osses.

On February 2, 1994, Mdra was indicted by a federal grand jury on
four counts of mail fraud. Wile the indictnent alleged that the fire that
destroyed Mdra's house had been set, it did not allege that Mdbra had set
the fire or caused it to be set, and arson was not directly at issue in any
of the four counts. The indictnment did allege that, as part of an
el aborate schene to defraud Safeco, Mra knowingly nade a host of
m srepresentations to Safeco. First, although Mra did not live at the Red
Bud Drive residence, a requirenent for coverage under the Safeco policy,
she informed Safeco that she did. To bolster her claimthat the fire had
di spl aced her, Mra also rented a hotel room and later a tenporary
apartnent and furniture. Finally, because the Safeco policy further
limted coverage to Mra's personal property, Mra clainmed that the
personal property of acquai ntances, who were residing at the Red Bud Drive
house, actually bel onged to her

Prior to trial, Mrra filed a notionin |limne to exclude evi dence of
arson, which was denied by the district court. During the course of the
trial, Mdra nmade ongoi ng objections to evidence regardi ng the cause of the
fire and her know edge of the arson. Mbra's objections were overrul ed by
the district court, and the governnent introduced evidence that the fire
had an i ncendiary cause, that Mdrra had experienced financial distress prior
to the arson, creating a notive for fraud, and that Mdra had known that

2This figure was | ater increased to $238, 556. 75.
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the arson was to occur.® Following a jury trial, Mra was convicted of all
four counts of nmamil fraud, and she was sentenced to twenty-seven nonths
i mprisonnent for each count, to run concurrently.

Mora brings this tinely appeal, arguing that Federal Rules of
Evi dence 403 and 404 shoul d have prevented the governnent fromintroducing
evi dence of arson and Mora's foreknow edge of the arson, because the
evi dence was irrel evant and prejudicial

W reviewthe district court's admi ssion of other crines evidence for
abuse of discretion. See United States v. Smith, 49 F.3d 475, 478 (8th
Cir. 1995). The admissibility of other crines evidence is governed by
Federal Rule of Evidence 404(b), which provides:

Evi dence of other crines, wongs, or acts is not admssible to
prove the character of a person in order to show action in
conformty therewith. It may, however, be admi ssible for other
pur poses, such as proof of notive, opportunity, intent,
preparation, plan, know edge, identity, or absence of m stake
or acci dent .

W have crafted a four-part test to deternmine if other crinmes evidence is
admi ssi bl e under Rul e 404(b). Such evidence is adm ssible when: (1) the
evidence of the bad act or other crinme is relevant to a material issue
raised at trial; (2) the bad act or crinme is simlar in kind and reasonably
close intime to the crine

For exanple, the governnent introduced evidence that
accel erants had been used at the fire scene, that Mira had |lost a
| arge anmount of noney on bad investnents and had repeatedly tried,
unsuccessfully, to sell the Red Bud Drive property, and that,
imedi ately before the fire, Mora arranged to fly to Texas to visit
her daughter, stayed several days, and flew back to M ssouri
i mredi ately after the fire.
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charged; (3) there is sufficient evidence to support a finding by the jury
that the defendant commtted the other act or crine; and (4) the potenti al
prejudice of the evidence does not substantially outweigh its probative
val ue. United States v. DeAngelo, 13 F.3d 1228, 1231 (8th Cir.), cert.
denied, 114 S. C. 2717 (1994); see also United States v. Mejia-Uribe, 75
F.3d 395, 397-98 (8th Gr. 1996); Smith, 49 F.3d at 478. Al of these
factors have been net in this case.

A. Rel evance

Rel evance of evidence "is established by any show ng, however slight,
that [the evidence] nmkes it nore or less likely that the defendant
committed the crine in question." United States v. Casares-Cardenas, 14
F.3d 1283, 1287 (8th Gr.) (construing Federal Rule of Evidence 401), cert.
denied, 115 S. C. 147 (1994). For a jury to decide if Mra had intended
to "devise [a] schene or artifice to defraud" her insurance conpany, 18

US C 8§ 1341, it is highly relevant whether the fire was a serendi pitous
accident, or whether it was a planned event. |If Mra knew that the fire
was to take place, her nisrepresentations to Safeco were nore |ikely
intentional and part of a coordinated plan, rather than inadvertent,
i sol ated mi sstat enents.

B. Closeness intime and sinlarity

Al though Mra apparently concedes that the arson and nmil fraud
occurred closely together in tinme, see Appellant's Br. at 18, she asserts
that "the offenses are not simlar." 1d. For this evidence to be
adm ssi bl e, however, the prior acts "need not be duplicates of the one for
whi ch the defendant is now being tried," United States v. Lloyd, 71 F.3d
1256, 1265 (7th Gr. 1995) (quotations and enphasis ontted) (evidence that
def endant had been target of assassination attenpts relevant to his notive

to possess firearns), because the "adnmissibility of other crines evidence



depends on the nature and purpose of the evidence." Mjia-Uibe, 75 F.3d

at 398. Here, evidence that Mdira withheld informati on about arson from
Safeco is sufficiently simlar to the charge that she m srepresented her
clains to Safeco to help prove her intent to defraud, and satisfies this
prong of the test.

C. Sufficient evidence

While conceding that "from the evidence, it was reasonable to
conclude that arson caused the fire," Appellant's Br. at 16, and
conplaining that the "sheer volumnosity of [evidence of arson] was
overwhel mi ngly persuasive and convincing that soneone was guilty of the
horrible crine of arson, and that soneone was Shirley Mra," Appellant's
Reply Br. at 7, Mora neverthel ess argues that "the governnent did not offer
any evi dence which indicated that Appellant participated in the offense of
arson." Appellant's Br. at 17.

Mora was not indicted for the crinme of arson, however, and the
governnment never set out to prove that she was guilty of arson. Rather
to prove that Mdra had committed nmail fraud, the governnent introduced
ot her crinmes evidence that Mdira knew that her house was to be destroyed by
arson. For this evidence to be relevant, the governnent had the burden of
proving, by a preponderance of evidence, that Mora had this foreknow edge
of arson. See Huddleston v. United States, 485 U S. 681, 690 (1988)
(burden of proof). The governnment net this burden, nost significantly by

i ntroduci ng evidence that Mdra, prior to the arson, had arranged to be in
Texas from March 30, 1993, until April 4, narrowy bracketing the arson
date of April 3. The governnent's post-arson evidence, show ng the extent
to which Mra imediately attenpted to misrepresent her |osses to Safeco,
al so tended to prove a well-devel oped plan based on foreknow edge of the
ar son.



D. Prejudice

Finally, Mra argues that evidence of arson and her know edge of
arson was unduly prejudicial, and was inadm ssible under both Federal Rules
of Evidence 404(b) and 403. W disagree. This Court has "held that the
jury in a crimnal case is entitled to know about the context of a crine
and any events that help explain the context." DeAngelo, 13 F.3d at 1232.
As noted above, the evidence adnitted was highly relevant to the context
of Mora's commssion of mail fraud. While we agree with Mora that arson
is a"heinous[,] . . . egregious and abhorrent" crinme, Appellant's Br. at
22, we do not believe that its unfairly prejudicial inpact, if any,

"substantially outwei ghed" its relevance in this case. See Fed. R Evid.
403.

Accordingly, we affirmthe judgnent of the district court.
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